

# House Calendar

---

Friday, April 25, 2025

108th DAY OF THE BIENNIAL SESSION

House Convenes at 9:30 A.M.

---

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

---

---

**Page No.**

### **ACTION CALENDAR**

#### **Action Postponed Until April 25, 2025**

##### **Favorable with Amendment**

**S. 36** An act relating to the Medicaid payment model for residential substance use disorder treatment services

Rep. Bishop for Human Services ..... 1678

Rep. Bluemle for Appropriations ..... 1680

Rep. Bishop et al. Amendment ..... 1680

Rep. Rachelson Amendment ..... 1681

##### **New Business**

##### **Favorable**

**H. 364** Approval of the annexation of property by the Village of Swanton

Rep. Hango for Government Operations and Military Affairs ..... 1682

Rep. Higley for Ways and Means ..... 1683

##### **Senate Proposal of Amendment**

**H. 398** The Vermont Economic Development Authority

Senate Proposal of Amendment ..... 1683

### **NOTICE CALENDAR**

##### **Favorable with Amendment**

**H. 248** Supplemental child care grants and the Child Care Financial Assistance Program

Rep. Cole for Human Services ..... 1683

**S. 60** An act relating to establishing the Farm Security Special Fund to provide grants for farm losses due to weather conditions

Rep. Bos-Lun for Agriculture, Food Resiliency, and Forestry ..... 1686

### Senate Proposal of Amendment

<b>H. 13</b> Medicaid payment rates for home- and community-based service providers Senate Proposal of Amendment .....	1692
<b>H. 206</b> The Uniform Commercial Code Senate Proposal of Amendment .....	1694
<b>H. 463</b> Technical corrections for the 2025 legislative session Senate Proposal of Amendment .....	1695

### Constitutional Proposal

<b>Proposal 3</b> Declaration of Rights; right to collectively bargain Rep. Krasnow for General and Housing .....	1695
--	------

### CONSENT CALENDAR FOR ACTION

<b>H.C.R. 109</b> Congratulating the South Burlington Chapter of Rotary International on 40 years of exemplary community service and professional camaraderie .....	1696
<b>H.C.R. 110</b> Designating April 2025 as Black Maternal Care Awareness Month in Vermont .....	1696
<b>H.C.R. 111</b> Designating May 18, 2025 as Grand Army of the Republic Highway Day in Vermont .....	1696
<b>H.C.R. 112</b> Congratulating Capital City Concerts and Karen Kevra for a quarter century of delightful and informative classical music performances and related cultural endeavors in central Vermont .....	1696
<b>H.C.R. 113</b> Congratulating the winning teams at the 2025 Jr Iron Chef VT competition .....	1696
<b>H.C.R. 114</b> Honoring Deborah J. Aldrich for 42 years of extraordinary municipal public service in the Town of Chester .....	1696
<b>H.C.R. 115</b> Congratulating the 2025 Danville High School Bears Division IV championship boys' basketball team .....	1696
<b>H.C.R. 116</b> Commemorating the 50th anniversary of the conclusion of the Vietnam War .....	1697
<b>H.C.R. 117</b> Congratulating Essex Middle School science teacher Andrew Kasprisin on his designation as the 2025 Vermont finalist for the Presidential Awards for Excellence in Mathematics and Science Teaching .....	1697
<b>H.C.R. 118</b> Commending Team Trumie and Truman Compton for their advocacy, community engagement, and fostering of public awareness and acceptance of autism .....	1697

---

---

**ORDERS OF THE DAY**

---

---

**ACTION CALENDAR**

**Action Postponed Until April 25, 2025**

**Favorable with Amendment**

**S. 36**

An act relating to the Medicaid payment model for residential substance use disorder treatment services

**Rep. Bishop of Colchester**, for the Committee on Human Services, recommends that the House propose to the Senate that the bill be amended by inserting a new Sec. 6 and a new section to be Sec. 7 to read as follows:

Sec. 6. REPORTS; PUBLIC INEBRIATE SERVICES AND  
PROGRAMMING

(a)(1) The Departments of Health and of Mental Health's existing plan to expand public inebriate services and programming shall prioritize Chittenden County.

(2) On or before February 15, 2026, the Departments of Health and of Mental Health shall jointly provide a presentation to the House Committees on Health Care and on Human Services and to the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare describing efforts to expand public inebriate services and programming pursuant to subdivision (1) of this subsection.

(b) On or before February 15, 2026, the Department of Corrections shall provide a presentation to the House Committees on Health Care and on Human Services and to the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare describing efforts to reinstate the practice of connecting individuals receiving public inebriate services in a correctional facility with appropriate community-based substance use recovery providers.

Sec. 7. REPORTS; HUMAN SERVICES BOARD PROCEEDINGS

(a) On or before December 15, 2025, the Agency of Human Services, in consultation with the Human Services Board, Office of the Attorney General, each of the Agency's departments with cases before the Human Services Board, community partners, and individuals with lived experience as appellants before the Board, shall submit a written report to the House Committees on Health Care and on Human Services and to the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare providing the following information and recommendations regarding proceedings before the Board:

(1) a proposal that attorneys representing the Agency or departments participate in training that balances the attorney's ethical obligation to zealously represent the attorney's client with the respectful, trauma-informed treatment of appellants;

(2) an analysis of varying appeals processes specific to the Agency and each department with cases before the Board, including proposals and any legislative action necessary to improve consistency;

(3) a proposal to identify and collect currently unavailable data in a manner that ensures uniform data collection across the Agency and departments with cases before the Board, including data regarding cases resolved prior to reaching the stage of hearing officer or full Board involvement;

(4) recommendations for resolving potential appeals prior to reaching the Board; and

(5) any other recommendation requiring legislative action.

(b) On or before December 15, 2025, the Human Services Board, in collaboration with the Agency of Human Services, each of the Agency's departments with cases before the Board, the Office of the Attorney General, community partners, and individuals with lived experience as appellants before the Board, shall submit a written report to the House Committees on Health Care and on Human Services and to the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare providing the following information and recommendations regarding proceedings before the Board:

(1) a proposal to improve understanding of Board processes and accessibility to appellants, including the use of media and graphics to explain what the Board is and how it operates;

(2) a proposal for the exchange of periodic feedback as part of a continual quality improvement process between the Board, Agency, departments appearing before the Board, Office of the Attorney General, Vermont Legal Aid, and other relevant stakeholders;

(3) an analysis of how to enable an appellant to present a personal narrative without jeopardizing the appellant's case or disrupting the legal obligations of the Board and the attorneys representing the Agency or departments appearing before the Board; and

(4) recommendations to improve the reporting and analysis of data to the General Assembly, including information related to appeal requests resolved prior to reaching the stage of hearing officer or full Board involvement.

and by renumbering the remaining section to be numerically correct

and that after passage the title of the bill be amended to read: “An act relating to the delivery and payment of certain services provided through the Agency of Human Services, Public Inebriate Services, and Human Services Board proceedings”

**(Committee vote: 11-0-0)**

**Rep. Bluemle of Burlington**, for the Committee on Appropriations, recommends that the House propose to the Senate that the bill be amended as recommended by the Committee on Human Services.

**(Committee Vote: 11-0-0)**

**Amendment to be offered by Reps. Bishop of Colchester, Cole of Hartford, Donahue of Northfield, Eastes of Guilford, Garofano of Essex, Maguire of Rutland City, McGill of Bridport, Nielsen of Brandon, Noyes of Wolcott, Steady of Milton, and Wood of Waterbury to the report of the Committee on Human Services on S. 36**

That the report of the Committee on Human Services be amended as follows:

First: By striking out Sec. 6, reports; public inebriate services and programming, in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 6 to read as follows:

Sec. 6. REPORTS; SERVICES AND PROGRAMMING FOR PERSONS

WHO ARE INCAPACITATED

(a)(1) The Departments of Health and of Mental Health’s existing plan to expand services and programming for persons who are incapacitated pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 4810 shall prioritize Chittenden County.

(2) On or before February 15, 2026, the Departments of Health and of Mental Health shall jointly provide a presentation to the House Committees on Health Care and on Human Services and to the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare describing efforts to expand services and programming for persons who are incapacitated pursuant to subdivision (1) of this subsection.

(b) On or before February 15, 2026, the Department of Corrections shall provide a presentation to the House Committees on Corrections and Institutions, on Health Care, and on Human Services and to the Senate Committees on Institutions and on Health and Welfare describing efforts to reinstate the practice of connecting persons who are in a correctional facility

due to incapacitation pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 4810 with appropriate community-based substance use recovery providers.

Second: By proposing to the Senate to amend the bill in Sec. 4, repeal, by striking out “public inebriates” and inserting in lieu thereof “persons who are incapacitated”

and that after passage the title of the bill be amended to read: “An act relating to the delivery and payment of certain services provided through the Agency of Human Services, services for persons who are incapacitated, and Human Services Board proceedings”

**Amendment to be offered by Rep. Rachelson of Burlington to S. 36**

That the House proposal of amendment be amended as follows:

First: By proposing to the Senate to amend the bill by striking out Sec. 4, repeal, and Sec. 5, 2019 Acts and Resolves No. 6, Sec. 105, in their entireties and inserting in lieu thereof new Secs. 4 and 5 to read as follows:

Sec. 4. 2019 Acts and Resolves No. 6, Sec. 105 is amended to read:

Sec. 105. EFFECTIVE DATES

\* \* \*

(c) Secs. 99 and 100 (amending 18 V.S.A. §§ 4910 and 4811) shall take effect on July 1, ~~2025~~ 2027.

\* \* \*

Sec. 5. 18 V.S.A. § 4810 is amended to read:

§ 4810. TREATMENT AND SERVICES

\* \* \*

(d) A person judged by a law enforcement officer to be incapacitated, ~~and who has not been charged with a crime, and who poses a risk to public safety~~ may be lodged in protective custody in a lockup or community correctional center for up to 24 hours or until judged by the person in charge of the facility to be no longer incapacitated, if and only if:

(1) the person refuses to be transported to an appropriate facility for treatment or, if once there, refuses treatment or leaves the facility before ~~he or she~~ the person is considered by the responsible staff of that facility to be no longer incapacitated; or

(2) ~~there is not an~~ approved substance abuse treatment program with detoxification capabilities ~~and no~~ a staff physician, or other medical

professional at ~~the nearest~~ a licensed general hospital can be found within a 60-mile radius of where the person was first encountered who will accept the person for treatment.

\* \* \*

(h) If an incapacitated person in protective custody is lodged in a lockup or community correctional center;

(1) ~~his or her~~ the person's family or next of kin shall be notified as promptly as possible. ~~If, unless~~ the person is an adult and requests that there be no notification, ~~his or her~~ in which case the person's request shall be respected;

(2) any personal belongings taken from the person shall be promptly returned to the person upon release; and

(3) the person shall be returned to the location the person was first encountered or other reasonable location upon release, if requested.

\* \* \*

Second: In Sec. 6, reports; services and programming for persons who are incapacitated, by striking out subsection (a) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new subsection (a) to read as follows:

(a) The Departments of Health and of Mental Health's existing plan to expand services and programming for persons who are incapacitated pursuant to 18 V.S.A. § 4810 shall first prioritize the county with the highest current use of correctional facilities for this purpose and then any other underserved region of the State. As part of the Departments' fiscal year 2027 budget presentation, the Departments shall include a proposal for expanding community-based services for persons who are incapacitated to underserved regions of the State using, in part, cost savings from diverting persons who are incapacitated from emergency departments and correctional facilities.

## **New Business**

### **Favorable**

#### **H. 364**

An act relating to approval of the annexation of property by the Village of Swanton

**Rep. Hango of Berkshire**, for the Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs, recommends the bill ought to pass.

**(Committee Vote: 10-0-1)**

**Rep. Higley of Lowell**, for the Committee on Ways and Means, recommends the bill ought to pass.

**(Committee Vote: 11-0-0)**

### **Senate Proposal of Amendment**

#### **H. 398**

An act relating to the Vermont Economic Development Authority

The Senate proposes to the House to amend the bill as follows:

First: In Sec. 1, 10 V.S.A. chapter 12, in section 254, in the section heading, by striking out the word “STATE” and inserting in lieu thereof “STATE AUTHORITY”

Second: In Sec. 1, 10 V.S.A. chapter 12, in section 280gg, by striking out subsection (a) in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new subsection (a) to read as follows:

(a)(1) There is established within the Authority the Vermont Disaster Recovery Loan Fund, referred to in this subchapter as “the Fund,” the purpose of which is to enable the Authority to provide loans and other forms of financial assistance to businesses, including agricultural and forest product enterprises, after disasters.

(2) The Authority shall consult with the Secretary of Commerce and Community Development; the Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets; and the Commissioner of Forests, Parks and Recreation in determining whether funds shall be made available following a nondeclared disaster event impacting areas of the State. A consultation shall not be required in the event of a disaster declaration declared by the Governor or the President of the United States.

### **NOTICE CALENDAR**

#### **Favorable with Amendment**

#### **H. 248**

An act relating to supplemental child care grants and the Child Care Financial Assistance Program

**Rep. Cole of Hartford**, for the Committee on Human Services, recommends that the bill be amended by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 33 V.S.A. § 3505 is amended to read:



§ 3505. SUPPLEMENTAL CHILD CARE GRANTS

(a)(1)(A) The Commissioner for Children and Families may reserve up to one-half of one percent of the ~~child care family assistance program~~ Child Care Financial Assistance Program funds for extraordinary financial relief to assist child care programs that are at risk of closing due to experiencing financial hardship. The Commissioner may provide extraordinary financial relief under this subdivision (A) to both licensed and registered child care programs and to child care programs that are in the process of becoming licensed or registered. The Commissioner shall develop guidelines for providing assistance and shall prioritize extraordinary financial relief to child care programs in areas of the State with high poverty and low access to high quality child care.

~~(B) If the Commissioner determines a child care program is at risk of closure because its operations are not fiscally sustainable, he or she may provide assistance to~~ In order to transition children who are currently served by the a child care operator program that is closing to a new child care program in an orderly fashion and to help secure other child care opportunities for children served by the program in an effort to minimize the disruption of services, the Commissioner may provide assistance to the existing or new program to minimize the disruption of services to the effected children.

(C) ~~The~~ As needed to implement this subdivision (1), the Commissioner has the authority to request tax returns and other financial documents to verify ~~the~~ a child care program's financial hardship and its ability to sustain or increase operations.

(2) Annually on or before January 15, the Commissioner shall report to the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare and to the House Committee on Human Services regarding any funds distributed pursuant to subdivision (1) of this subsection. Specifically, the report shall address how funds were distributed and used. It shall also address results related to any distribution of funds.

\* \* \*

Sec. 2. 33 V.S.A. § 3512 is amended to read:

§ 3512. CHILD CARE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM;

ELIGIBILITY

(a)(1) The Child Care Financial Assistance Program is established to subsidize the costs of child care for families that need child care services in order to obtain employment, to retain employment, or to obtain training leading to employment. Families seeking employment shall be entitled to participate in the Program for up to three months and the Commissioner may

further extend that period. The Program shall support eligible families by either:

(A) establishing services with a child care provider with whom the Division has contracted or issued a grant for child care services; or

(B) providing a subsidy issued pursuant to subdivision (2) of this subsection (a).

(2) The subsidy authorized by this subsection and the corresponding family contribution shall be established by the Commissioner, by rule, and shall bear a reasonable relationship to income and family size. The Commissioner may adjust the subsidy and family contribution by rule to account for increasing child care costs not to exceed 1.5 times the most recent annual increase in the NAICS code 611, Educational Services. Families shall be found eligible using an income eligibility scale based on the current federal poverty level and adjusted for the size of the family. Co-payments shall be assigned to the whole family and shall not increase if more than one eligible child is enrolled in child care. Families with an annual gross income of less than or equal to 175 percent of the current federal poverty guidelines shall not have a family co-payment. Families with an annual gross income up to and including 575 percent of current federal poverty guidelines, adjusted for family size, shall be eligible for a subsidy authorized by this subsection. The scale shall be structured so that it encourages employment. If the federal poverty guidelines decrease in a given year, the Division shall maintain the previous year's federal poverty guidelines for the purpose of determining eligibility and benefit amount under this subsection.

\* \* \*

Sec. 3. 33 V.S.A. § 3514 is amended to read:

#### § 3514. PAYMENT TO PROVIDERS

(a)(1) The Commissioner shall establish a payment schedule for purposes of ~~reimbursing~~ paying providers for full- or part-time child care services rendered to families who participate in the programs established under section 3512 or 3513 of this title. The payment schedule shall ensure timely payment to child care providers by requiring payment in advance of or at the beginning of the delivery of child care services. The payment schedule shall account for the age of the children served, and all providers in the same child care setting category shall receive ~~a reimbursement~~ payment in accordance with a rate payment established by the Commissioner, which shall be dependent upon whether the provider operates a child care center and preschool program, family child care home, or afterschool or summer care program. The

~~reimbursement~~ payment rate shall then be adjusted to reduce the differential between family child care homes and center-based child care and preschool programs by 50 percent.

(2) Payments shall be based on a child's authorized enrollment. The Department, in consultation with the Office of Racial Equity and stakeholders, shall adopt rules pursuant to 3 V.S.A. chapter 25 that define "enrollment" and the total number of allowable absences to continue participating in the Child Care Financial Assistance Program. The Department shall minimize itemization of absence categories.

\* \* \*

#### Sec. 4. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on passage.

**(Committee Vote: 11-0-0)**

### **S. 60**

An act relating to establishing the Farm Security Special Fund to provide grants for farm losses due to weather conditions

**Rep. Bos-Lun of Westminster**, for the Committee on Agriculture, Food Resiliency, and Forestry, recommends that the House propose to the Senate that the bill be amended by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

#### Sec. 1. FINDINGS

The General Assembly finds that:

(1) In 2023 and 2024, Vermont experienced extreme flooding and other climate-fueled disasters that devastated farms and other working lands businesses across the State.

(2) Many existing State and federal programs that are designed to support farms and forestry operations are difficult to access, are administratively burdensome, are not equitably distributed to small- and medium-scale farmers and forestry operations, and currently do not meet the needs of Vermont farmers and forestry operations in a holistic way.

(3) In particular, because federal crop insurance programs are not designed to serve the needs of smaller scale or more diversified farming operations, many Vermont farmers are not covered by crop insurance.

(4) The State should establish a permanent funding support program to:

(A) maintain the viability of farms and forestry operations in Vermont in order to ensure food security, climate resilience, rural economic vitality, and environmental health;

(B) continuously invest in farms and forestry operations in a way that makes them more resilient to current and future challenges; and

(C) provide a source of relief funds permanently available to farmers and forestry operations impacted by climate emergencies and extreme weather.

Sec. 2. 6 V.S.A. chapter 207 is amended to read:

CHAPTER 207. PROMOTION AND, MARKETING, AND SUPPORT OF  
VERMONT FARMS, FOODS, AND PRODUCTS

\* \* \*

Subchapter 4. Farm and Forestry Operations Security Special Fund

§ 4631. DEFINITIONS

As used in this subchapter:

(1) “Eligible weather condition” means any of the following weather conditions that are found to be closely correlated with agricultural or forest operation income losses:

(A) high winds;

(B) excessive moisture, intense precipitation, or flooding;

(C) extreme heat;

(D) abnormal freeze conditions;

(E) a forest fire or wild fire event;

(F) hail;

(G) drought; or

(H) any other severe weather or growing conditions impacting agricultural or forestry operations income, as determined by the Review Board.

(2) “Farm” means a parcel or parcels of land owned, leased, or managed by a person and devoted primarily to farming and that is subject to regulation under the Required Agricultural Practices.

(3) “Farm and Forestry Operations Security Special Fund Review Board” or “Review Board” means the Board established under section 4634 of this title.

(4) "Farming" has the same meaning as in section 2.16 of the Required Agricultural Practices.

(5) "Forestry operation" has the same meaning as in 10 V.S.A. § 2602.  
§ 4632. FARM AND FORESTRY OPERATIONS SECURITY SPECIAL

FUND

(a) There is established the Farm and Forestry Operations Security Special Fund to be administered by the Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets and that shall be managed in accordance with 32 V.S.A. chapter 7, subchapter 5. The Fund shall consist of:

(1) funds transferred by the General Assembly;

(2) funds from public and private sources that the Secretary accepts for the Fund; and

(3) funds from federal government aid for State support of farmers or forestry operations suffering income loss due to weather conditions.

(b) The Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets shall ensure language accessibility of the Fund through procurement and provision of interpretation and translation services.

(c) All balances in the Fund at the end of any fiscal year shall be carried forward and remain part of the Fund.

§ 4633. FARM AND FORESTRY OPERATIONS SECURITY SPECIAL

FUND; PAYMENTS

(a) The Secretary, after consultation with the Review Board, shall award payments from the Farm and Forestry Operations Security Special Fund to persons owning farms and forestry operations that have incurred financial losses or expenses due to an eligible weather condition.

(1) Payments from the Fund shall be in an amount that reimburses a farm or forestry operation for up to 50 percent of the unreimbursed, uninsured, or otherwise uncovered losses due to eligible weather conditions, up to a maximum annual award of five percent of the undesignated and unreserved funds in the Farm and Forestry Operations Security Special Fund at the beginning of each fiscal year, provided that the award shall not exceed \$150,000.00 per qualified applicant farm or forestry operation per year.

(2) The Secretary may verify the occurrence of an eligible weather condition claimed under this section through a site visit or through use of available data from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration,

from other federal or State certified weather data sources, or from other public or private weather or satellite data or models.

(3) Losses reimbursable by a payment under this section include:

(A) wages or compensation;

(B) replacement of lost income from destroyed crops, impacted livestock, or timber;

(C) debt payments or other ongoing expenses;

(D) costs of replanting;

(E) livestock feed replacement costs;

(F) infrastructure or equipment repair and replacement;

(G) repair of farm roads, roads necessary to access farms, repair of washed out or otherwise damaged logging roads;

(H) inability to access harvested timber due to flooding or other weather conditions; and

(I) other losses as determined by the Secretary after consultation with the Review Board.

(b) The Secretary shall develop a streamlined application for awards under this section that shall include:

(1) a brief description of the damage that occurred;

(2) attestation of an eligible weather condition or event;

(3) an estimate of losses; and

(4) a year-end report of farm or forestry operation income and expenses.

(c) An application for an award under this section may be made at any time, and the Secretary may only close the application process upon award of all appropriated funds for the relevant fiscal year.

(d) Applications for an award under this section shall be processed in the order received for each quarter, but an application shall not be ready for evaluation until the Secretary determines that the application is administratively complete and includes all documentation required by the Secretary.

(e) All administratively complete applications shall be evaluated by the Review Board. Within 15 days following receipt of an administratively complete application, the Review Board by majority vote shall recommend to the Secretary whether to issue a payment to the applicant. If the Review Board

recommends an award under this section, the Secretary shall issue the award within 15 days following the date of the Review Board's recommendation.

(f) The Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets may use up to \$67,500.00 annually from the Fund for the purposes of administering payments from the Fund.

§ 4634. FARM AND FORESTRY OPERATIONS SECURITY SPECIAL  
FUND REVIEW BOARD

(a) Creation. There is created the Farm and Forestry Operations Security Special Fund Review Board, which for administrative purposes shall be attached to the Agency of Agriculture, Food and Markets.

(b) Organization of Board. The Board shall be composed of:

(1) the Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets or designee, who shall serve as chair;

(2) the Commissioner of Forests, Parks and Recreation or designee;

(3) the State Chief Recovery Officer or designee;

(4) representatives of three agricultural organizations who can demonstrate expertise in dealing with all sizes and types of farms in Vermont, whether through granting funds, offering technical assistance, or advocacy, and who have a proven track record of working with farmers, appointed by the Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets;

(5) two farmers who have received relief funding, appointed by the Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets; and

(6) two forestry operators, appointed by the Commissioner of Forests, Parks and Recreation.

(c) Member terms; conflict.

(1) The members designated in subdivision (b)(3) of this section shall be appointed to initial terms of two years. Thereafter, each appointed member shall serve a term of three years or until the member's earlier resignation or removal. The members designated in subdivision (b)(4) of this section shall be appointed to initial terms of one year. The members designated in subdivision (b)(5) of this section shall be appointed to initial terms of two years. Thereafter, each appointed member shall serve a term of three years or until the member's earlier resignation or removal. A vacancy shall be filled by the appointing authority for the remainder of the unexpired term. An appointed member shall not serve more than three consecutive three-year terms.

(2) If a Board member has a conflict of interest, as that term is defined by 3 V.S.A. § 1201, regarding review of any application for a payment under this section, the Secretary of Agriculture, Food and Markets may appoint an alternate member to maintain a quorum of the Board to review an application and recommend whether payment should be awarded.

(d) Powers.

(1) The Review Board shall review applications for assistance under this section, assess the accuracy and validity of the applications, and recommend to the Secretary applicants who should receive assistance under this section.

(2) The Board annually shall report to the House Committee on Agriculture, Food Resiliency, and Forestry and the Senate Committee on Agriculture the total documented Vermont farm and forestry operations financial losses from eligible weather conditions averaged over the previous three calendar years.

(3) In order to ensure that the Fund is meeting the needs of Vermont's agricultural community and forestry operations community, the Review Board annually shall review the application process, eligibility criteria, distribution, and accessibility of the Fund. The Review Board annually shall recommend to the House Committee on Agriculture, Food Resiliency, and Forestry and the Senate Committee on Agriculture ways to improve the effectiveness of the Fund.

(e) Officers; committees. The Board may elect officers, establish one or more committees or subcommittees, and adopt such procedural rules as it shall determine necessary and appropriate to perform its work.

(f) Quorum; meetings; voting. A majority of the sitting members shall constitute a quorum, and action taken by the Board may be authorized by a majority of the members present and voting at any regular or special meeting at which a quorum is present. The Board may meet as an advisory body under 1 V.S.A. chapter 5, subchapter 2.

(g) Compensation. Private sector members shall be entitled to per diem compensation authorized under 32 V.S.A. § 1010(b) for each day spent in the performance of their duties, and each member shall be reimbursed from the Fund for the member's actual and necessary expenses incurred in carrying out the member's duties.

Sec. 3. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on July 1, 2025.



and that after passage the title of the bill be amended to read: “An act relating to establishing the Farm and Forestry Operations Security Special Fund to provide payments for farm losses due to weather conditions”

**(Committee vote: 8-0-0)**

## **Senate Proposal of Amendment**

### **H. 13**

An act relating to Medicaid payment rates for home- and community-based service providers

The Senate proposes to the House to amend the bill by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 33 V.S.A. § 900 is amended to read:

#### § 900. DEFINITIONS

~~Unless otherwise required by the context, the words and phrases in this chapter shall be defined as follows~~ As used in this chapter:

\* \* \*

(7) “Community-based services” means the following services provided pursuant to Vermont’s Global Commitment to Health Section 1115 Medicaid demonstration or a successor program:

(A) long-term services and supports provided to older adults and adults with disabilities in a home or community setting other than a nursing home, including enhanced residential care services;

(B) home health and hospice services, adult day rehabilitation services, and assistive community care services; and

(C) short- and long-term services and supports provided to individuals with mental conditions, individuals with substance use disorders, individuals with developmental or intellectual disabilities, and individuals with a brain injury, in a home or community setting that is not a clinical residential setting or a private nonmedical residential setting.

Sec. 2. 33 V.S.A. § 911 is added to read:

#### § 911. PAYMENT RATES FOR PROVIDERS OF COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES

(a) The Secretary of Human Services shall calculate payment rates for providers of community-based services that are reasonable and adequate to achieve the required outcomes for the populations they serve. When calculating these payment rates, the Secretary:

(1) for informational purposes, shall ensure that the calculations take into account factors that include:

(A) the reasonable cost of any governmental mandate that has been enacted, adopted, or imposed by any State or federal authority; and

(B) a cost adjustment factor to reflect changes in reasonable costs of goods to and services of providers of community-based services, including those attributed to inflation and labor market dynamics; and

(2) may consider geographic differences in wages, benefits, housing, and real estate costs in each region of the State.

(b) The Secretary shall establish a methodology for calculating payment rates for providers of community-based services in accordance with this section. The methodology shall:

(1) provide a schedule for conducting studies of the Medicaid reimbursement rates paid to the providers of community-based services, including the rates' adequacy and their underlying methodologies, that includes studying the rates paid to providers for each type of service at least once every five years;

(2) set forth a predictable timeline for redetermination of base rates;

(3) include a process for calculating an annual inflationary rate adjustment;

(4) to the extent permitted by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, take into account the financial needs of providers whose reimbursements may be negatively affected by client absences; and

(5) use Vermont labor market rates and Vermont costs of operation.

(c) The Secretary shall establish a process by which a provider of community-based services whose financial condition places it at imminent risk of closure may request provider stabilization from the Agency.

(d) The Secretary shall recalculate the payment rates for providers of community-based services in accordance with this section at least annually and shall report those rates, and the amounts necessary to fund them, to the House Committees on Appropriations, on Human Services, and on Health Care and the Senate Committees on Appropriations and on Health and Welfare annually as part of the Agency's budget presentation.

Sec. 3. 18 V.S.A. § 8914 is amended to read:

§ 8914. RATES OF PAYMENTS TO DESIGNATED AND SPECIALIZED SERVICE AGENCIES

~~(a) The Secretary of Human Services shall have sole responsibility for establishing calculate the Departments of Health's, of Mental Health's, and of Disabilities, Aging, and Independent Living's rates of payments for designated and specialized service agencies that are reasonable and adequate to achieve the required outcomes for designated populations in accordance with 33 V.S.A. § 911. When establishing rates of payment for designated and specialized service agencies, the Secretary shall adjust rates to take into account factors that include:~~

~~(1) the reasonable cost of any governmental mandate that has been enacted, adopted, or imposed by any State or federal authority; and~~

~~(2) a cost adjustment factor to reflect changes in reasonable costs of goods and services of designated and specialized service agencies, including those attributed to inflation and labor market dynamics.~~

~~(b) When establishing rates of payment for designated and specialized service agencies, the Secretary may consider geographic differences in wages, benefits, housing, and real estate costs in each region of the State.~~

#### Sec. 4. PAYMENT RATES FOR PROVIDERS OF COMMUNITY-BASED SERVICES; UPDATE ON IMPLEMENTATION; REPORT

On or before January 15, 2026, the Agency of Human Services shall report to the House Committees on Human Services and on Health Care and the Senate Committee on Health and Welfare with an update on the Agency's implementation of 33 V.S.A. § 911, as added by Sec. 2 of this act, including the Agency's proposed schedule for Medicaid rate studies and the methodology the Agency developed for calculating payment rates for providers of community-based services.

#### Sec. 5. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on passage.

and that after passage the title of the bill be amended to read: "An act relating to Medicaid payment rates for community-based service providers"

### **H. 206**

An act relating to the Uniform Commercial Code

The Senate proposes to the House to amend the bill as follows:

First: In Sec. 11, transitional provisions for articles 9 and 12 of the Uniform Commercial Code amendments, in subdivision (b)(1)(A), following "transaction validly entered into", by inserting "before"

Second: In Sec. 11, transitional provisions for articles 9 and 12 of the Uniform Commercial Code amendments, in subdivision (d)(2), following “as amended by this act, on”, by striking out “July 1, 2025”

### **H. 463**

An act relating to technical corrections for the 2025 legislative session

The Senate proposes to the House to amend the bill in: Sec. 7, 9 V.S.A. § 206, following “pertaining” by inserting to

### **Constitutional Proposal**

#### PROPOSAL 3

Declaration of rights; right to collectively bargain

First of Four Days on the Notice Calendar

**Rep. Krasnow of South Burlington** for the Committee on General and Housing.

#### Sec. 1. PURPOSE

This proposal would amend the Constitution of the State of Vermont to provide that the citizens of the State have a right to collectively bargain.

Sec. 2. Article 23 of Chapter I of the Vermont Constitution is added to read:

Article 23. [Right to collectively bargain]

That employees have a right to organize or join a labor organization for the purpose of collectively bargaining with their employer through an exclusive representative of their choosing for the purpose of negotiating wages, hours, and working conditions and to protect their economic welfare and safety in the workplace. Therefore, no law shall be adopted that interferes with, negates, or diminishes the right of employees to collectively bargain with respect to wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment and workplace safety, or that prohibits the application or execution of an agreement between an employer and a labor organization representing the employer’s employees that requires membership in the labor organization as a condition of employment.

#### Sec. 3. EFFECTIVE DATE

The amendment set forth in this proposal shall become a part of the Constitution of the State of Vermont on the first Tuesday after the first Monday of November 2026 when ratified and adopted by the people of this State in accordance with the provisions of 17 V.S.A. chapter 32.

**(Committee vote: 10-1-0)**

## **CONSENT CALENDAR FOR ACTION**

### **Concurrent Resolutions for Adoption Under Joint Rules 16a - 16d**

The following concurrent resolutions have been introduced for approval by the Senate and House and will be adopted automatically unless a Senator or Representative requests floor consideration in that member's chamber before today's adjournment. Requests for floor consideration in either chamber should be communicated to the Senate Secretary's Office or the House Clerk's Office, as applicable. For text of resolutions, see Addendum to House Calendar of April 24, 2025.

#### **H.C.R. 109**

House concurrent resolution congratulating the South Burlington Chapter of Rotary International on 40 years of exemplary community service and professional camaraderie

#### **H.C.R. 110**

House concurrent resolution designating April 2025 as Black Maternal Care Awareness Month in Vermont

#### **H.C.R. 111**

House concurrent resolution designating May 18, 2025 as Grand Army of the Republic Highway Day in Vermont

#### **H.C.R. 112**

House concurrent resolution congratulating Capital City Concerts and Karen Kevra for a quarter century of delightful and informative classical music performances and related cultural endeavors in central Vermont

#### **H.C.R. 113**

House concurrent resolution congratulating the winning teams at the 2025 Jr Iron Chef VT competition

#### **H.C.R. 114**

House concurrent resolution honoring Deborah J. Aldrich for 42 years of extraordinary municipal public service in the Town of Chester

#### **H.C.R. 115**

House concurrent resolution congratulating the 2025 Danville High School Bears Division IV championship boys' basketball team

### **H.C.R. 116**

House concurrent resolution commemorating the 50th anniversary of the conclusion of the Vietnam War

### **H.C.R. 117**

House concurrent resolution congratulating Essex Middle School science teacher Andrew Kasprisin on his designation as the 2025 Vermont finalist for the Presidential Awards for Excellence in Mathematics and Science Teaching

### **H.C.R. 118**

House concurrent resolution commending Team Trumie and Truman Compton for their advocacy, community engagement, and fostering of public awareness and acceptance of autism

### **For Informational Purposes**

#### **NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING**

The Vermont Senate Committee on Government Operations and the Vermont House Committee on Government Operations and Military Affairs will hold a public hearing on Veteran's Affairs on **Wednesday, April 30, 2025 from 4:00 P.M. to 5:30 P.M. in Room 11 at the State House.**

**The hearing will be available to watch live on YouTube at the following link.**

YouTube livestream:

<https://legislature.vermont.gov/committee/streaming/house-government-operations-and-military-affairs>

#### **H.C.R. REQUEST DEADLINE**

All requests for a 2025 House Concurrent Resolution should be submitted to Michael Chernick in the Office of Legislative Counsel by noon on **Friday, April 25, 2025.**

#### **CROSSOVER DATES**

The Joint Rules Committee established the following crossover dates:

(1) All **Senate/House** bills must be reported out of the last committee of reference (including the Committees on Appropriations and Finance/Ways and

Means, except as provided below in (2) and the exceptions listed below) on or before **Friday, March 14, 2025**, and filed with the Secretary/Clerk so they may be placed on the Calendar for Notice the next legislative day – Committee bills must be voted out of Committee by **Friday, March 14, 2025**.

(2) All **Senate/House** bills referred pursuant to Senate Rule 31 or House Rule 35(a) to the Committees on Appropriations and Finance/Ways and Means must be reported out by the last of those committees on or before **Friday, March 21, 2025**, and filed with the Secretary/Clerk so they may be placed on the Calendar for Notice the next legislative day.

**Exceptions to the foregoing deadlines include the major money bills (the general Appropriations bill (“The Big Bill”), the Transportation Capital bill, the Capital Construction bill, and the Fee/Revenue bills).**

### **HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION (H.C.R.) PROCESS**

Joint Rules 16a–16d provide the procedure for the General Assembly to adopt concurrent resolutions pursuant to the Consent Calendar. Here are the steps for Representatives to introduce an H.C.R. and to have it ceremonially read during a House session:

1. Meet with Legislative Counselor Michael Chernick regarding your H.C.R. draft request. Come prepared with an idea and any relevant supporting documents.
2. Have a date in mind if you want a ceremonial reading. You should meet with Counselor Chernick at least two weeks prior to the week you want your ceremonial reading to happen.
3. Counselor Chernick will draft your H.C.R., and Resolutions Editor and Coordinator Jill Pralle will edit it. Upon completion of this process, a paper or electronic copy will be released to you. If a paper copy is released to you, a sponsor signout sheet will also be included.
4. Please submit the sponsor list to Counselor Chernick by paper *or* electronically, but not both.
5. The final list of sponsors needs to be submitted to Counselor Chernick not later than 12:00 noon the Thursday of the week prior to the H.C.R.’s appearance on the Consent Calendar.
6. The Office of Legislative Counsel will then send your H.C.R. to the House Clerk’s Office for incorporation into the Consent Calendar and House Calendar Addendum for the following week.

7. The week that your H.C.R. is on the Consent Calendar, any presentation copies that you requested will be mailed or available for pickup on Friday, after the House and Senate adjourn, which is when your H.C.R. is adopted pursuant to Joint Rules.
8. Your H.C.R. can be ceremonially read during a House session once it is adopted. If you would like to schedule a ceremonial reading, contact Second Assistant Clerk Courtney Reckord to confirm your requested ceremonial reading date.

### **JOINT FISCAL COMMITTEE NOTICES**

Grants and Positions that have been submitted to the Joint Fiscal Committee by the Administration, under 32 V.S.A. §5(b)(3)(D):

**JFO #3244:** \$2,335,401.00 to the Agency of Human Services, Department of Health from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. Funds support continued crisis counseling assistance and training in response to the July 2024 flood event. *[Received February 7, 2025]*

**JFO #3245:** \$250,000.00 to the Agency of Human Services, Department of Health from the National Association of State Mental Health Program Directors. Funds used to provide trainings for crisis staff and to make improvements to the State's crisis system dispatch platform. *[Received February 7, 2025]*

**JFO #3246:** 125+ acre land donation valued at \$184,830.00 from Pieter Van Schaik of Cavendish, VT to the Agency of Natural Resources, Department of Forests, Parks and Recreation. The acreage will become part of the Lord State Forest. *[Received March 24, 2025]*

**JFO #3247:** \$2,875,419.00 to the Agency of Human Services, Department for Children and Families to support families affected by the July 2024 flood event. The request includes three (3) limited-service positions. Two (2) Emergency Management Specialists to the AHS central office and one (1) Grants and Contract Manager to the Department of Children and Families Positions funded through June 30, 2027. *[Received 04/10/2025, expedited review requested 04/10/2025]*

**JFO #3248:** \$35,603.00 to the Vermont Department of Libraries from the Vermont Community Foundation and the dissolution of the VT Public Library Foundation. The grant will provide modest grants to VT libraries with a preference for smaller libraries and for programs and projects that support children and diversity. *[Received April 10, 2025]*



**JFO #3249:** \$22,117.00 to the Agency of Human Services, Department of Corrections to ensure compliance with the Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA). *[Received April 10, 2025]*

**JFO #3250:** \$391,666.00 to the Vermont Agency of Natural Resources, Department of Forests, Parks and Recreation from the Northern Border Regional Commission. Funds will support the Vermont Outdoor Recreation Economic Collaboration (VOREC) Program Director as well as VOREC initiatives. *[Received April 11, 2025]*

**JFO #3251:** \$50,000.00 to the Agency of Human Services, Central Office from the National Governor's Association. The funds will support state-side improvements of service-to-career pathways, with a focus on emergency responders. *[Received April 11, 2025]*

**JFO #3252:** \$10,000,000.00 to the Vermont Department of Libraries from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The Public Facilities Preservation Initiative grant will provide smaller grants to rural libraries for the completion of necessary capital improvement projects. *[Received April 11, 2025]*